
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

19 March 2021 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Audit & Governance Committee on 
Monday, 29th March, 2021 at 6.30 pm 

 
This will be a meeting held in line with The Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels 

(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority & Police & Crime Panel Meetings) England & 
Wales) Regulations 2020. 

 
This meeting will be held virtually via Zoom and streamed live 

via:  www.mybostonuk.com/youtube 
 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Tom Ashton 
 Councillors Alison Austin, David Brown, George Cornah, 

Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian, Martin Howard MSc. PCGM, Cert Ed, 
Frank Pickett, Peter Watson and Mr Alan Pickering 
 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting, held on 25th January 2021.  
 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.mybostonuk.com/youtube


B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Wednesday 24th March 2021 
 

E   APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN  
 

 To appoint a Vice-Chairman for the remainder of the Municipal Year. 
 

 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   FUND MANAGER PRESENTATION  
 

 A presentation from a representative from AEW Fund Manager.  
 

2   AUDIT STRATEGY MEMORANDUM - YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2020  
(Pages 7 - 42) 
 

 A report by Mazars  
 

3   ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019/20 - SECTION 151 OFFICER 
COMBINED ASSURANCE - STATUS REPORT (Pages 43 - 60) 
 

 A report presented by John Scott, Internal Audit Manager. 
 

4   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2020/21 (Pages 61 - 76) 
 

 A report presented by John Scott, Internal Audit Manager.  
 

5   DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2021/22 (Pages 77 - 90) 
 

 A report presented by John Scott, Internal Audit Manager   
 

6   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 91 - 92) 
 

 (For Members to consider the Committee’s work programme.) 
 

 
 
 



 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, 01205 314227     
email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify 01205 314227    
email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

25 January 2021 

Present: Councillor Tom Ashton (Chairman), Councillor Martin Howard MSc. PCGM, 
Cert Ed (Vice-Chairman), Councillors Alison Austin, David Brown, George Cornah, 
Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian, Frank Pickett, Peter Watson and Mr Alan Pickering 
 
In attendance: Councillor Jonathan Noble, Portfolio Holder for Finance 
 
Officers –  
Section 151 Officer, Transformation & Governance Manager, Head of Internal Audit 
(City of Lincoln Council), Principal Auditor (City of Lincoln Council), Senior Democratic 
Services Officer and Democratic Services Apprentice 
 
54   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 9th November 2020 were agreed as a correct record 
subject to the deletion of Councillor Martin Howard’s name from the list of those present 
at the meeting, and would be signed by the Chairman. 
 
55   APOLOGIES 

 
None. 
 
56   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
57   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None. 
 
58   RISK REPORT QUARTER 2 - 2020/21 

 
The IT & Transformation Manager presented a report, which provided the Committee 
with an update on risks as at the end of Quarter 2 of 2020/2021 (April to September 
2020) to provide assurance that corporate governance arrangements were in place and 
functioning effectively. 
 
Strategic and operational risks continued to be managed in accordance with the Risk 
Management Framework. 
 
Strategic risks, which were monitored quarterly, were reviewed by the corporate 
management team in Quarter 1, particularly with regard to the impact of Covid-19 and 
the Strategic Alliance with East Lindsey District Council. They had also been reviewed in 
Quarter 2 in light of the change in management structure and would be reviewed again 
in Quarter 3/4 in light of the new Corporate Plan.   
 
Housing and Budget remained the two high strategic risks in Quarter 2 and there had 
been no change to the strategic risk scores in Q2.  Full details of strategic risks were set 
out in Appendix A. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



Audit & Governance Committee 
25 January 2021 
 

Operational risks had been reviewed in Quarter 1 and 2, with exception reporting of high 
operational / project risks, and any changes to management assurance levels, being set 
out in the report. 
 

For 2021/22, the Council would be looking to have a single risk management approach 
across the Alliance, with strategic and operational risks reviewed as part of service 
planning.  The Council’s Risk Management Framework was based on the countywide 
model and so would lend itself to aligning into a single approach.   
 
In response to questions, the IT & Transformation Manager explained that the health 
risk was rated as medium as it related to the delivery of the Council’s own health 
objectives. However, the point made regarding the impact of COVID-19 on services was 
noted. 
 
The risk relating to flooding would be revised as the barrier was now operational.  The 
report only related to risks within the control of the Council; details could be obtained 
from the Environment Agency about other measures to keep the town safe. 
  

Action: SR 
Forward details to Members regarding the risk relating to fresh water flooding and 
regarding the forecast of population change due to Brexit. 

 
It was confirmed that there was a Transformation Plan in place for the Council and that 
officers were working on a new plan for the Strategic Alliance.  
 
A Member raise concerns about the IT upgrades and accreditation needed.  In 
response, the IT & Transformation Manager explained that the risk relating to the Public 
Services Network Compliance Certificate had been medium for some time and 
measures were in place to work towards accreditation.  The Audit Report had judged it 
as a medium risk and, therefore, it was not high enough a risk to report to Cabinet at this 
stage, though the impact would need to be considered if it carried on into the future. 
Capacity and resilience within the IT section had been an issue for some time. The risk 
would appear on both strategic and operational risk registers. 
 
The Portfolio Holder confirmed that Public Sector Partnership Services (PSPS) would be 
delivering IT upgrades at a cost of around £633,000, as opposed to approximately 
£825,000 for the Council to do itself.   
 
59   STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21 - ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
The Section 151 Officer presented a report regarding the proposed Accounting Policies 
for the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts, with the draft attached as Appendix A.  
 
The annual Statement of Accounts was one of the ways that the Council demonstrated 

the stewardship of funds, and its preparation was governed by a series of specific 

requirements relating to its content and format. 

Unless there were major changes to accounting rules and regulation, accounting 

policies did not change significantly between years because the Accounts would not be 

comparable from one year to the next.   

Page 2



Audit & Governance Committee 
25 January 2021 

 

The pre-audit 2020/21 Statement of Accounts would be presented to the Committee in 

May 2021.  The accounting policies would be included within the Accounts, and any 

changes made as a result of the audit process would be highlighted and explained in the 

final report to the Committee in July 2021. 

There were no changes to the Council’s Accounting Policies for 2020/21. The proposed 

implementation of a change in the way Leases were treated (IFRS16) had been 

deferred, probably until 2022/23. 

RESOLVED That: 
1. The Accounting Policies, as set out in Appendix A, be approved and adopted 

for 2020/21; and  
2. The final approval of any necessary minor change, prior to inclusion in the 

Accounts, be delegated to the Section 151 Officer. 

 
60   TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL STRATEGY UPDATE - 

QUARTER 3 2020/21 
 

The Chief Finance Officer and Section 151 Officer presented a report, which set out the 
Treasury Management and relevant capital strategy activities of the Council for the 
period 1 April to 31 December 2020. 
 
In terms of investment returns, the Council was expecting to achieve a total of £960,000 
for 2020/21 comprising £897,000 gross distribution income from property fund holdings 
(i.e. before deduction of management fees) and £63,000 from cash investments. This 
compared to the total gross annual budget of £1,077,000. 
 
The Council was generally keeping cash investments short term up to a maximum of 
twelve months. As the financial climate changed, whom the Council invested with and 
the amount invested, was under constant scrutiny, taking into account risk at any 
particular moment in time.  
 
Members asked a range of questions.  The Section 151 Officer advised the Committee 
that returns from the Council’s property funds equated to approximately 3.5%, which 
was an excellent rate of return.  
 
The value of the funds had gone down from £20m to £19.5m since the previous year. 
However, the Section 151 Officer advised Members not to be concerned in this regard 
because this was a long-term investment. In the same way, when a house-owner rented 
out the property, the fact that the value of the house might fluctuate in the short to 
medium term would not be a concern as long as the rental income continued. The 
excellent rate of return from the property funds was due to the management of the funds 
by professional experts who ensured the funds yielded the maximum return.   
 
An increase in interest rates would be to the Council’s advantage overall because it had 
surplus cash, but long-term forecasts indicated that rates would remain low for some 
time to come.   
 
The Portfolio Holder pointed out that the Council’s investments in property funds were at 
a fixed rate of interest and that it was a long-term 50-year investment.   
 

Page 3



Audit & Governance Committee 
25 January 2021 
 

The Section 151 Officer reassured Members that the possibility of there being a situation 
of negative interest rates was very unlikely. 
 
61   DRAFT BUDGET SETTING REPORT AND MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL 

STRATEGY 2021/22 - 2025/26 FOR CONSULTATION 
 

The Section 151 Officer presented the draft Budget Setting Report and Medium-Term 
Financial Strategy for 2021/22 to 2025/26 for the Committee to consider during the 
budget consultation. 
 
On 27th January 2021, Cabinet would receive the draft report for approval for 
consultation.  The Cabinet report and its appendices were attached at Appendix A. 
 
The report included the recommended level of Council Tax increase for 2021/22 of 
£4.95.  This represented a 2.57% increase to make the Council’s share of the precept 
£197.91. 
 
The proposed revenue budget for 2021/22 showed a surplus position currently of 
£98,000. However, in the following years there was a savings requirement of 
approximately £700,000 per year. 
 
Members were invited to consider the report in the light of the Committee’s governance 
responsibilities and make any comments, which would be fed back to Cabinet as part of 
the consultation prior to the budget’s approval at Full Council in March.  
 
The Section 151 Officer thanked the Accountancy Manager - Revenue and Systems and 
the finance team for the substantial amount of work they had undertaken. 
 
The £98,000 surplus the following year was mainly due to the delay of the Government’s 
Fair Funding Review, which had been put back a year due to the pandemic.  However, 
the following year there would be a deficit. 
 
The report was very positive; many authorities were in a much more precarious position. 
The Council had recently benefited from funding from the Community Champions 
budget as well as funding for homelessness. This meant the Council was in a good 
position and in a good place to make savings. 
 
In response to questions, the Section 151 Officer confirmed that there was no intention 
to reduce staff; the report forecast that a very small number could perhaps be lost over 
future years. The Council Tax increase proposed was the highest that could be put in 
place without triggering a referendum. Officers were erring on the side of caution. 
 
The Portfolio Holder answered questions about the reserves, explaining that the housing 
reserve was for expenditure such as funding a housing association to provide low-cost 
housing.  The funding volatility reserve was to provide cover for short-term fluctuations 
in funding.  
 
A Member then proposed that it be recommended to Cabinet and Full Council that there 
be no increase in the Council Tax for 2021/22 in order to give some respite to Council 
Tax payers – many were on low wages and had been hit by the impact of the pandemic, 

Page 4



Audit & Governance Committee 
25 January 2021 

 

which had also affected mental health. The Council had a surplus of £98,000, which it 
could use instead of increasing Council Tax.  This proposal was seconded.   
 
The Section 151 Officer urged caution, as not increasing the Council Tax would 
jeopardise the balancing of the budget in future years. 
 
Other Members raised concerns about the proposal, including public expectation that 
the Council Tax increase to be 0% every year. 
 
The Portfolio Holder explained that the Council had received generous Government 
funding in the current year, but the Council could not rely on this in the future and they 
did not know what the full impact of the pandemic would be. 
 
Members asked a range of questions.  In response, the Section 151 Officer explained 
that it was a risk that the proposed level of fees and charges would not achieve the 
income expected, but it was expected that the Government would recompense 
authorities for losses next year. If not, reserves would be used to avoid unnecessary 
cuts to services. The proposed £4.95 increase would result in an extra 9p per week for 
Band D properties and 6p per week for Band A properties and provide the Council with 
approximately £100,000 additional income per annum. The proposed increase for 
Lincolnshire Police was approximately £15 and £40 for the County Council.   
 
During discussion of the internal drainage board (IDB) levies, which two-thirds of the 
Council Tax increase would have to cover, Members agreed that they should receive a 
briefing on the matter to explain the details fully. 
 

Action: AS 
Arrange a Member Briefing regarding the impact of the internal drainage board (IDB) 
levies on the Council’s budget and invite representatives from the IDBs to attend. 

 
The Chairman commented that the Council Tax increase had been low since the 
introduction of the Government’s cap and considered that the Council was managing 
satisfactorily despite those small increases.  A deficit of £700,000 was predicted the 
following year and it would irresponsible not to increase Council Tax in the current year, 
as it would result in an annual loss going forward and the amount to cover the deficit 
would have to be found from somewhere.  
 
The proposal to recommend a 0% increase in Council Tax was then put to the vote, but 
fell, with 3 votes for and 6 votes against.  Mr Pickering confirmed that he was against the 
proposal.   
 
It was then agreed that Members’ comments be fed back to Cabinet as part of the 
consultation on the budget, prior to its approval at Full Council on 1st March 2021. 
 
62   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2020/21 

 
The Internal Audit Manager presented the regular Internal Audit progress report for 
2021/21. 
 

Page 5



Audit & Governance Committee 
25 January 2021 
 

Good progress was being made delivering the revised plan – at the end of December 
2020, 46% of the Audit Plan had been completed, against the target of 50%.  The Plan 
would be substantially complete by the end of the 
financial year, i.e. reports would be at draft stage but might not have been finalised. 
 
Two pieces of work had been completed in this period, and six pieces of work were in 
progress. 
 
The Covid-19 Assurance audit report was at draft stage.  This was an assessment to 
determine if any of the changes caused by the initial lockdown had any significant 
impacts on the risk and control environment. 
 
Other audits in progress were: 
• ICT security assurance 
• Council Tax 
• Housing Benefits & Council Tax Support 
• Payroll 
 
The assurance review of National Non-Domestic Rates (NNR) had been completed and 
given High assurance.   
 
The report detailed the results of a piece of consultancy work completed on the Strategic 
Alliance Memorandum of Agreement (MOA).   
 
The report also summarised other matters that would be of interest to the Committee. 
 
The Chairman commented that there had been very little slippage within the work plan in 
the current difficult times. The Committee agreed that their thanks be extended to the 
Internal Audit team along with the Section 151 Officer, Accountancy Manager - Revenue 
and Systems and the finance team. 
 
63   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Members considered the work programme for the remainder of 2020/21. 
 
The Chairman reported that the Monitoring Officer and Councillor Development Group 
had indicated that the new Local Government Association (LGA) code of conduct still 
needed some primary legislation. It would need to be considered by the Standards Sub-
Committee in the first instance before it came before the Committee. Ideally, the Council 
would adopt the code within the current municipal year. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 8.30 pm 
 

Page 6



Audit Strategy Memorandum

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 2



01
02
03
04
05
06
07
08

Contents

Engagement and responsibilities summary
Your audit engagement team
Audit scope, approach and timeline
Significant risks and other key judgement areas
Value for Money
Fees for audit and other services
Our commitment to independence
Materiality and misstatements

Appendix – Key communication points

This document is to be regarded as confidential to Boston Borough Council. It has been prepared for the sole use of Audit and Governance Committee as the appropriate sub-committee charged with governance. No 
responsibility is accepted to any other person in respect of the whole or part of its contents. Our written consent must first be obtained before this document, or any part of it, is disclosed to a third party.

2

P
age 8



Audit and Governance Committee
Boston Borough Council
Municipal Buildings
West Street
Boston
Lincolnshire
PE21 8QR

17 February 2021

Dear Committee Members

Audit Strategy Memorandum – Year ending 31 March 2021 
We are pleased to present our Audit Strategy Memorandum for Boston Borough Council for the year ending 31 March 2021. The purpose of this document is to summarise our audit approach, highlight significant audit risks and 
areas of key judgements and provide you with the details of our audit team. As it is a fundamental requirement that an auditor is, and is seen to be, independent of its clients, section 8 of this document also summarises our 
considerations and conclusions on our independence as auditors. We consider two-way communication with you to be key to a successful audit and important in:

• reaching a mutual understanding of the scope of the audit and the responsibilities of each of us;

• sharing information to assist each of us to fulfil our respective responsibilities;

• providing you with constructive observations arising from the audit process; and

• ensuring that we, as external auditors, gain an understanding of your attitude and views in respect of the internal and external operational, financial, compliance and other risks facing Boston Borough Council which may affect 
the audit, including the likelihood of those risks materialising and how they are monitored and managed.

With that in mind, we see this document, which has been prepared following our initial planning discussions with management, as being the basis for a discussion around our audit approach, any questions, concerns or input you 
may have on our approach or role as auditor. This document also contains an appendix that outlines our key communications with you during the course of the audit,

Client service is extremely important to us and we strive to provide technical excellence with the highest level of service quality, together with continuous improvement to exceed your expectations so, if you have any concerns or 
comments about this document or audit approach, please contact me at mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk.

Yours faithfully

Mark Surridge

Mazars LLP

Mazars LLP
2 Chamberlain Square

Birmingham
B3 3AX

Mazars LLP – 2 Chamberlain Square, Birmingham, B3 3AX
Tel: 0121 2329500 – www.mazars.co.uk
Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an integrated international advisory and accountancy organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, 
London E1W 1DD.
We are registered to carry on audit work in the UK by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our audit registration can be viewed at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861. VAT number: 839 8356 73

P
age 9

mailto:mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk
http://www.mazars.co.uk/


Section 01:
Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

P
age 10



5

1. Engagement and responsibilities summary

Overview of engagement
We are appointed to perform the external audit of Boston Borough Council (the Council) for the year to 31 March 2021. The scope of our engagement is set out in the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited 
Bodies, issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) available from the PSAA website: https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/. Our responsibilities 
are principally derived from the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office (NAO), as outlined below.

Audit opinion
We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements. Our 
audit does not relieve management or Audit and Governance Committee, as those charged 
with governance, of their responsibilities.

Going concern
The Council is required to prepare its financial statements on a going concern basis by the 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. The section 151 officer is responsible for 
the assessment of whether is it appropriate for the Council to prepare it’s accounts on a 
going concern. basis As auditors, we are required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence regarding, and conclude on the appropriateness of the section 151 officer’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements and the 
adequacy of disclosures made.

Fraud
The responsibility for safeguarding assets and for the prevention and detection of fraud, 
error and non-compliance with law or regulations rests with both those charged with 
governance and management. This includes establishing and maintaining internal controls 
over reliability of financial reporting.

As part of our audit procedures in relation to fraud we are required to enquire of those 
charged with governance, including key management and Internal Audit, as to their 
knowledge of instances of fraud, the risk of fraud and their views on internal controls that 
mitigate the fraud risks. In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), we 
plan and perform our audit so as to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements taken as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud 
or error. However, our audit should not be relied upon to identify all such misstatements.

Reporting to the NAO
We report to the NAO on the Council’s financial statements and the matters arising from our
audit which are relevant to the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) submission.

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Value for money
We are also responsible for reaching a conclusion on the arrangements that the Council has 
in place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We discuss 
our approach to Value for Money work further in section 5 of this report.

Electors’ rights
The 2014 Act requires us to give an elector, or any representative of the elector, the opportunity to question us about the accounting records of the Council and consider any objection made to the accounts. We 
also have a broad range of reporting responsibilities and powers that are unique to the audit of local authorities in the United Kingdom

P
age 11

https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/


Section 02:
Your audit engagement team

P
age 12



2. Your audit engagement team

7

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Your external audit service continues to be led by Mark Surridge. A summary of key team members are 
detailed below:

Who Role E-mail

Mark Surridge Engagement Lead mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk

Jon Machej Engagement Manager jon.machej@mazars.co.uk

Vikash Patel Engagement Assistant Manager vikash.patel@mazars.co.uk

P
age 13

mailto:mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk
mailto:jon.machej@mazars.co.uk
mailto:vikash.patel@mazars.co.uk


Section 03:
Audit scope, approach and timeline

8

P
age 14



3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

Audit scope
Our audit approach is designed to provide an audit that complies with all professional requirements.

Our audit of the financial statements will be conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), relevant ethical and professional standards, our own audit approach and in accordance with the terms of our 
engagement. Our work is focused on those aspects of your business which we consider to have a higher risk of material misstatement, such as those impacted by management judgement and estimation, application of new 
accounting standards, changes of accounting policy, changes to operations or areas which have been found to contain material errors in the past.

Audit approach
Our audit approach is a risk-based approach primarily driven by the risks we consider to result in a higher risk of material misstatement of the financial statements. Once we have completed our risk assessment, we develop our 
audit strategy and design audit procedures in response to this assessment.

If we conclude that appropriately designed controls are in place then we may plan to test and rely upon these controls. If we decide controls are not appropriately designed, or we decide it would be more efficient to do so, we may 
take a wholly substantive approach to our audit testing. Substantive procedures are audit procedures designed to detect material misstatements at the assertion level and comprise: tests of details (of classes of transactions, 
account balances, and disclosures); and substantive analytical procedures. Irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, which take into account our evaluation of the operating effectiveness of controls, we are 
required to design and perform substantive procedures for each material class of transactions, account balance, and disclosure.

Our audit will be planned and performed so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement and give a true and fair view. The concept of materiality and how we define a 
misstatement is explained in more detail in section 8.

The diagram on the next page outlines the procedures we perform at the different stages of the audit.

9

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 15



10

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

Planning January – February 2021
• Planning visit and developing our understanding of the Council
• Initial opinion and value for money risk assessments
• Considering proposed accounting treatments and accounting policies
• Developing the audit strategy and planning the audit work to be performed
• Agreeing timetable and deadlines
• Preliminary analytical review

Completion September 2021
• Final review and disclosure checklist of financial statements
• Final partner review
• Agreeing content of letter of representation
• Reporting to the Audit and Governance Committee
• Reviewing subsequent events
• Signing the auditor’s report

Interim March 2021
• Documenting systems and controls
• Performing walkthroughs
• Interim controls testing including tests of IT general controls 
• Early substantive testing of transactions
• Reassessment of audit plan and revision if necessary

Fieldwork June - July 2021
• Receiving and reviewing draft financial statements
• Reassessment of audit plan and revision if necessary
• Executing the strategy starting with significant risks and high risk areas
• Communicating progress and issues
• Clearance meeting

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 16



11

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

Reliance on internal audit
Where possible we will seek to utilise the work performed by internal audit to modify the nature, extent and
timing of our audit procedures. We will meet with internal audit to discuss the progress and findings of their
work prior to the commencement of our controls evaluation procedures.

Where we intend to rely on the work on internal audit, we will evaluate the work performed by your internal audit
team and perform our own audit procedures to determine its adequacy for our audit.

Management’s and our experts
Management makes use of experts in specific areas when preparing the Council’s financial statements. We
also use experts to assist us to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on specific items of account.

Service organisations
International Auditing Standards (UK) (ISAs) define service organisations as third party organisations that
provide services to the Council that are part of its information systems relevant to financial reporting. We are
required to obtain an understanding of the services provided by service organisations as well as evaluating the
design and implementation of controls over those services. The table below summarises the service
organisations used by the Council and our planned audit approach.

Item of account Management’s expert Our expert

Property, plant and 
equipment 

Kier Services

The Council’s external valuer
None

Pensions 
Barnett Waddingham

Actuary for Lincolnshire Pension 
Fund

PwC LLP
Consulting actuary appointed by the 
NAO

Financial instrument 
disclosures

Link Asset Services

Treasury management advisors
None

Business rate appeals 
provision

InformCPI Ltd.

The Council’s rating specialist
None

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Items of account Service organisation Audit approach

Pension cost (cost of 
services)

Net interest on defined 
benefit liability 

Re-measurements of the net
defined benefit liability (OCI)

Net pension liability

Lincolnshire Pension Fund

The IAS 19 pension entries that 
form part of the Council's financial 
statements are material and are 
derived from actuarial valuations. 
The process of obtaining these is 
co-ordinated by and uses 
information held and processed by 
the service organisation.

We will review the controls 
operating at the Council over these 
transactions to gain an 
understanding of the services 
provided by the service 
organisation.

Where we conclude that we do not 
have a sufficient understanding of 
the services by the service 
organisation we will seek to obtain 
assurance by using another auditor 
to perform procedures that will 
provide the necessary information 
about relevant controls at the 
service organisation.

P
age 17



12

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

Service organisations (continued)

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Items of account Service organisation Audit approach

Payroll costs (cost of 
services)

Creditors

North Kesteven District Council

The payroll entries that form part of 
the Council’s financial statements 
are material and are derived from 
the processing of monthly payrolls. 
The payroll processing is 
undertaken and administered by 
North Kesteven District Council on 
behalf of the Council.

We will review the controls 
operating at the Council over these 
transactions to gain an 
understanding of the services 
provided by the service 
organisation.

We expect to be able to conclude 
that the Council has sufficient 
controls in place over the services 
provided by the payroll bureau and 
that we will be able to audit payroll 
based on the records held at the 
entity.

P
age 18



Section 04:
Significant risks and other key 
judgement areas

13

P
age 19



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Following the risk assessment approach discussed in section 3 of this document, we have identified relevant 
risks to the audit of financial statements. The risks that we identify are categorised as significant, enhanced or 
standard. The definitions of the level of risk rating are given below:

Significant risk
A significant risk is an identified and assessed risk of material misstatement that, in the auditor’s judgment, 
requires special audit consideration. For any significant risk, the auditor shall obtain an understanding of the 
entity’s controls, including control activities relevant to that risk.

Enhanced risk
An enhanced risk is an area of higher assessed risk of material misstatement (‘RMM’) at audit assertion level 
other than a significant risk. Enhanced risks require additional consideration but does not rise to the level of a 
significant risk, these include but may not be limited to:

• key areas of management judgement, including accounting estimates which are material but are not 
considered to give rise to a significant risk of material misstatement; and

• other audit assertion risks arising from significant events or transactions that occurred during the period.

Standard risk
This is related to relatively routine, non-complex transactions that tend to be subject to systematic processing 
and require little management judgement. Although it is considered that there is a risk of material misstatement 
(RMM), there are no elevated or special factors related to the nature, the likely magnitude of the potential 
misstatements or the likelihood of the risk occurring. 

Summary risk assessment
The summary risk assessment, illustrated in the table below, highlights those risks which we deem to be significant 
and other enhanced risks in respect of the Council. We have summarised our audit response to these risks on the 
next page.

14

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Key:            Significant risk Enhanced risk / significant management judgement

HighLow Likelihood

2
3

1

Financial im
pact

4

1 Management override of controls

2 Net defined benefit liability valuation

3 Valuation of land and buildings

Covid-19 grant recognition4P
age 20



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Specific identified audit risks and planned testing strategy
We have presented below in more detail the reasons for the risk assessment highlighted above, and also our testing approach with respect to significant risks. An audit is a dynamic process, should we change our view of risk or
approach to address the identified risks during the course of our audit, we will report this to the Audit and Governance Committee.

Significant risks

Description Fraud Error Judgement Planned response

1 Management override of controls 
This is a mandatory significant risk on all audits due to the 
unpredictable way in which such override could occur.

Management at various levels within an organisation are in a unique 
position to perpetrate fraud because of their ability to manipulate 
accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by 
overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 
Due to the unpredictable way in which such override could occur 
there is a risk of material misstatement due to fraud on 
all audits.

- -
We plan to address the management override of controls risk through 
performing audit work over accounting estimates, journal entries and 
significant transactions outside the normal course of business or otherwise 
unusual. 

15

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 21



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Significant risks (continued)

Description Fraud Error Judgement Planned response

2 Net defined benefit liability valuation
The defined benefit liability relating to the Local Government 
pension scheme represents a significant balance on the Council’s 
balance sheet.

The Council uses an actuary to provide an annual valuation of these 
liabilities in line with the requirements of IAS 19 Employee Benefits.

Due to the high degree of estimation uncertainty associated with this 
valuation, we have determined there is a significant risk in this area.

-
We plan to address the risk by:

• critically assessing the competency, objectivity and independence of the 
Lincolnshire Pension Fund’s Actuary, Barnett Waddingham;

• liaising with the auditors of the Lincolnshire Pension Fund to gain 
assurance that the controls in place at the Pension Fund are operating 
effectively. This will included the processes and controls in place to 
ensure data provided to the Actuary by the Pension Fund for the 
purposes of the IAS 19 valuation is complete and accurate;

• reviewing the appropriateness of the Pension Asset and Liability valuation 
methodologies applied by the Pension Fund Actuary, and the key 
assumptions included within the valuation. This will include comparing 
them to expected ranges, utilising information by the consulting actuary 
engaged by the National Audit Office; and

• agreeing the data in the IAS 19 valuation report provided by the Fund 
Actuary for accounting purposes to the pension accounting entries and 
disclosures in the Council’s financial statements.

In line with 2019/20 and the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, we will monitor 
the valuation approach and whether a material uncertainty disclosure will be 
required for 2020/21.

16

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 22



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

17

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Description Fraud Error Judgement Planned response

3 Valuation of property, plant and equipment, investment 
properties and assets held for sale
The Council’s accounts contain material balances and disclosures 
relating to its holding of property, plant and equipment, investment 
properties and assets held for sale, with the majority required to be 
carried at valuation.

The valuation of these assets is complex and is subject to a number 
of management assumptions and judgements.

Due to the high degree of estimation uncertainty associated, we 
have determined there is a significant risk in this area.

-

We plan to address this risk by:

• critically assessing the Council’s valuers scope of work, qualifications, 
objectivity and independence to carry out the required programme of 
revaluations;

• considering whether the overall revaluation methodologies used by the 
Council’s valuers are in line with industry practice, the CIPFA code of 
practice and the Council’s accounting policies; 

• assessing whether valuation movements are in line with market 
expectations by considering valuation trends; and

• critically assessing the approach that the Council adopts to ensure that 
assets that are not subject to revaluation in 2020/21 are materially 
correct, including considering the robustness of that approach in light of 
the valuation information reported by the Councils valuers.

In line with 2019/20 and the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, we will monitor 
the valuation approach and whether a material uncertainty disclosure will be 
required for 2020/21.

Significant risks (continued)

P
age 23



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

18

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Description Fraud Error Judgement Planned response

4 Covid-19 grant recognition
Throughout 2020/21, the Government has provided substantial 
sums of financial support to local authorities. A lack of clarity exists 
in respect of the expected accounting treatment over this income 
source.

We therefore identified the completeness and accuracy of the this 
income as a risk.

- -
We plan to address this risk by:

• reviewing the Council’s approach in determining whether grants are or 
are not ringfenced for specified areas of expenditure;

• testing grant income recorded in the ledger to grant allocations/ 
notifications; and

• reviewing a sample of grants to ensure conditions to recognise the 
income in 2020/21 have or have not been met.

Significant risks (continued)

P
age 24



Section 05:
Value for Money

19

P
age 25



20

5. Value for Money

The framework for Value for Money work
We are required to form a view as to whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The NAO issues guidance to auditors that 
underpins the work we are required to carry out in order to form our view, and sets out the overall criterion 
and sub-criteria that we are required to consider. 

The new Code of Audit Practice (the Code) has changed the way in which we report our findings in relation 
to Value for Money (VFM) arrangements from 2020/21. Whilst we are still required to be satisfied that the 
Council has proper arrangements in place, we will now report by exception in our auditor’s report where we 
have identified significant weakness in those arrangements. This is a significant change to the requirements 
under the previous Code which required us to give a conclusion on the Council’s arrangements as part of 
our auditor’s report. 

Under the new Code, the key output of our work on VFM arrangements will be a commentary on those 
arrangements which will form part of the Auditor’s Annual Report.

Specified reporting criteria
The Code requires us to structure our commentary to report under three specified criteria:

1. Financial sustainability – how the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue 
to deliver its services

2. Governance – how the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its 
risks

3. Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness – how the Council uses information about its costs 
and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services

Our approach
Our work falls into three primary phases as outlined opposite. We need to gather sufficient evidence to 
support our commentary on the Council’s arrangements and to identify and report on any significant 
weaknesses in arrangements. Where significant weaknesses are identified we are required to report these 
to the Council and make recommendations for improvement. Such recommendations can be made at any 
point during the audit cycle and we are not expected to wait until issuing our overall commentary to do so.

Engagement and 
responsibilities 

summary
Your audit

engagement team
Audit scope,

approach and timeline
Extended

auditor’s report
Significant risks and 
key judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Planning and risk 
assessment

Obtaining an understanding of the Council’s arrangements for each 
specified reporting criteria. Relevant information sources will include:
• NAO guidance and supporting information
• Information from internal and external sources including regulators
• Knowledge from previous audits and other audit work undertaken in the 

year
• Interviews and discussions with staff and members.

Additional risk 
based 

procedures and 
evaluation

Reporting

Where our planning work identifies risks of significant weaknesses, we will 
undertake additional procedures to determine whether there is a significant 
weakness.

We will provide a summary of the work we have undertaken and our 
judgements against each of the specified reporting criteria as part of our 
commentary on arrangements. This will form part of the Auditor’s Annual 
Report.
Our commentary will also highlight:
• Significant weaknesses identified and our recommendations for 

improvement
• Emerging issues or other matters that do not represent significant 

weaknesses but still require attention from the Council. 

P
age 26



• how the body ensures that it identifies all the significant financial 
pressures that are relevant to its short and medium-term plans and 
builds these into them

• how the body plans to bridge its funding gaps and identifies 
achievable savings

• how the body plans finances to support the sustainable delivery of 
services in accordance with strategic and statutory priorities

• how the body ensures that its financial plan is consistent with other 
plans such as workforce, capital, investment, and other operational 
planning which may include working with other local public bodies as 
part of a wider system

• how the body identifies and manages risks to financial resilience, 
e.g. unplanned changes in demand, including challenge of the 
assumptions underlying its plans.

• how the body monitors and assesses risk and how the body gains 
assurance over the effective operation of internal controls, including 
arrangements to prevent and detect fraud

• how the body approaches and carries out its annual budget setting 
process

• how the body ensures effective processes and systems are in place 
to ensure budgetary control; to communicate relevant, accurate and 
timely management information (including non-financial information 
where appropriate); supports its statutory financial reporting 
requirements; and ensures corrective action is taken where needed

• how the body ensures it makes properly informed decisions, 
supported by appropriate evidence and allowing for challenge and 
transparency. This includes arrangements for effective challenge 
from those charged with governance/audit committee

• how the body monitors and ensures appropriate standards, such as 
meeting legislative/regulatory requirements and standards in terms 
of officer or member behaviour (such as gifts and hospitality or 
declarations/conflicts of interests).

• how financial and performance information has been used to assess 
performance to identify areas for improvement

• how the body evaluates the services it provides to assess 
performance and identify areas for improvement

• how the body ensures it delivers its role within significant 
partnerships, engages with stakeholders it has identified, monitors 
performance against expectations, and ensures action is taken 
where necessary to improve

• where the body commissions or procures services, how the body 
ensures that this is done in accordance with relevant legislation, 
professional standards and internal policies, and how the body 
assesses whether it is realising the expected benefits.

Under the 2020 Code, we are required to structure our commentary on the Council’s ‘proper arrangements’ under three specified reporting criteria, which are expanded in the supporting guidance notes produced by the National 
Audit Office:

Financial sustainability: how the body plans and manages its 
resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services

Governance: how the body ensures that it makes informed decisions 
and properly manages its risks, including

Improving VFM: how the body uses information about its costs and 
performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services

5. Value for money conclusion

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 27



22

5. Value for Money

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Identified risks of significant weaknesses in arrangements
The NAO’s guidance requires us to carry out work at the planning stage to understand the Council’s arrangements and to identify risks that significant weaknesses in arrangements may exist.

Due to the late release of the NAO’s Auditor Guidance Note and supporting information to auditors, we have not yet fully completed our planning and risk assessment work. We will report the results of our planning and risk 
assessment work to the Audit and Governance Committee at a later date.

P
age 28



Section 06:
Fees for audit and other services

23

P
age 29



6. Fees for audit and other services

24

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Fees for work as the Council’s appointed auditor
Details of the 2019/20 Actual and 2020/21 Audit fees in line with PSAA and other reporting mechanisms are set out below:

Area of work 2020/21 Proposed Fee 2019/20 Actual Fee

Scale audit fee £33,961 £33,961

Fee variations:

Additional Testing on Property, Plant & Equipment and Defined Benefit 
Pensions Schemes as a result of changes in regulatory expectations £6,194 1 £6,194

Additional testing as a result of the implementation of new auditing standards: 
ISA 220 (Revised): Quality control of an audit of financial statements; ISA 540 
(Revised): Auditing accounting estimates and related disclosures; ISA570 
(Revised) Going Concern; and ISA 600 (Revised): Specific considerations –
audit of group financial statements. 

£2,000 2 -

Other additional costs TBC £5,032 3

Sub-total £42,155 £45,187

Additional work arising from the change in the Code of Audit Practice £10,000 4 -

Total £52,155 5 £45,187

1 As previously reported to you, the scale fee has been adjusted to 
take into account the additional work required as a result of increased 
regulatory expectations over these areas.
2 For 2020/21, two new auditing standards have been introduced 
incurring additional time and audit work not reflected in the scale fee. 
Additional testing as a result of the implementation of IFRS 16 Leases 
is deferred to the financial year 2021/22.
3 The additional audit costs in 2019/20 will be disclosed within our 
Annual Audit Letter, and presented at a future Audit and Governance 
Committee. This mainly relates to additional testing and reporting of 
uncertainties in key estimates as a result of Covid-19.
4 As explained in section 5, the revised Code of Audit Practice results 
in a substantial amount of additional audit work to support the value for 
money conclusion and the changes in reporting requirements, 
requiring additional time and input from the senior members of the 
team. Our review of the Code and supporting guidance notes shows 
that the additional fee impact at all public sector entities is expected to 
be at least £10,000. The final fee will take into account the extent, and 
complexity of, any significant weaknesses in arrangements to review 
and report upon.
5 This is a proposed fee for 2020/21 at the point of the issue of our 
ASM. This figure is subject to change and additional costs will be 
discussed with management, for example material valuation 
uncertainty on asset valuations as a result of Covid-19.

P
age 30



6. Fees for audit and other services

Fees for non-PSAA work
In addition to the fees outlined above in relation to our appointment by PSAA, we have been separately engaged 
by the Council to carry out additional work as set out in the table below. Before agreeing to undertake any 
additional work we consider whether there are any actual, potential or perceived threats to our independence. 
Further information about our responsibilities in relation to independence is provided in section 7.

25

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Area of work 2020/21 Proposed Fee 2019/20 Actual Fee

Other services - Housing Benefits Subsidy 
Assurance £6,800 £6,800

P
age 31



Section 07:
Our commitment to independence

26

P
age 32



7. Our commitment to independence
We are committed to independence and are required by the Financial Reporting Council to confirm to you at 
least annually in writing that we comply with the FRC’s Ethical Standard. In addition, we communicate any 
matters or relationship which we believe may have a bearing on our independence or the objectivity of the 
audit team.

The Ethical Standard 2019 is applicable for any non-audit services commencing on or after 15 March 2020.

Based on the information provided by you and our own internal procedures to safeguard our independence as 
auditors, we confirm that in our professional judgement there are no relationships between us and any of our 
related or subsidiary entities, and you and your related entities creating any unacceptable threats to our 
independence within the regulatory or professional requirements governing us as your auditors.

We have policies and procedures in place which are designed to ensure that we carry out our work with 
integrity, objectivity and independence. These policies include:

• All partners and staff are required to complete an annual independence declaration;

• All new partners and staff are required to complete an independence confirmation and also complete 
computer based ethical training;

• Rotation policies covering audit engagement partners and other key members of the audit team; and

• Use by managers and partners of our client and engagement acceptance system which requires all non-
audit services to be approved in advance by the audit engagement partner.

We confirm, as at the date of this document, that the engagement team and others in the firm as appropriate, 
Mazars LLP are independent and comply with relevant ethical requirements. However, if at any time you have 
concerns or questions about our integrity, objectivity or independence please discuss these with Mark Surridge 
in the first instance.

Prior to the provision of any non-audit services Mark Dalton will undertake appropriate procedures to consider 
and fully assess the impact that providing the service may have on our auditor independence.

Principal threats to our independence and identified associated safeguards in relation to the planned non-audit 
work for 2020/21 are set out below. Any emerging independence threats and associated identified safeguards 
will be communicated in our Audit Completion Report.

27

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

Service Considerations

Housing Benefits Subsidy
Assurance

We have considered threats and safeguards as follows:

• Self Review: The work does not involve the preparation of information 
that has a material impact upon the financial statements subject to audit 
by Mazars;

• Self Interest: The total fee level is not deemed to be material to the 
Council or Mazars. The work undertaken is not paid on a contingency 
basis;

• Management: The work does not involve Mazars making any decisions 
on behalf of management;

• Advocacy: The work does not involve Mazars advocating the Council to 
third parties;

• Familiarity: Work is not deemed to give rise to a familiarity threat given 
this piece of assurance work used to fall under the Audit Commission / 
PSAA certification regimes and was the responsibility of the Council’s 
appointed auditor; and

• Intimidation: The nature of the work does not give rise to any 
intimidation threat from management to Mazars.

P
age 33



Section 08:
Materiality and other misstatements

28

P
age 34



8. Materiality and misstatements

Summary of initial materiality thresholds

* Reflecting movement from one salary band to another

Materiality
Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular matter in the context of 
financial statements as a whole. 

Misstatements in financial statements are considered to be material if they, individually or in aggregate, could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial 
statements. 

Judgements on materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by the size and 
nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both. Judgements about materiality are based on consideration of 
the common financial information needs of users as a group and not on specific individual users.

The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and is affected by our perception of 
the financial information needs of the users of the financial statements. In making our assessment we assume 
that users:

• Have a reasonable knowledge of business, economic activities and accounts; 

• Have a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence;

• Understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of materiality;

• Recognize the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of estimates, 
judgement and the consideration of future events; and

• Will make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial statements.

We consider materiality whilst planning and performing our audit based on quantitative and qualitative factors.

Whilst planning, we make judgements about the size of misstatements which we consider to be material and which 
provides a basis for determining the nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures, identifying and 
assessing the risk of material misstatement and determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures.

The materiality determined at the planning stage does not necessarily establish an amount below which 
uncorrected misstatements, either individually or in aggregate, will be considered as immaterial. 

29

Threshold Initial threshold
£’000s

Overall materiality 950

Performance materiality 760

Trivial threshold for errors to be reported to Audit and Governance 
Committee

28

Specific materiality:

Officer remuneration 5*

Termination payments 1

Audit fees 9

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 35



8. Materiality and misstatements

Materiality (continued).
We revise materiality for the financial statements as our audit progresses should we become aware of 
information that would have caused us to determine a different amount had we been aware of that information 
at the planning stage.

Our provisional materiality is set based on a benchmark of gross revenue expenditure for 2019/20. We will 
identify a figure for materiality but identify separate levels for procedures design to detect individual errors, and 
also a level above which all identified errors will be reported to Audit and Governance Committee.

We consider that gross revenue expenditure. remains the key focus of users of the financial statements and, as 
such, we base our materiality levels around this benchmark. 

We expect to set a materiality threshold at 2% of gross revenue expenditure. Based on prior year financial 
statements we anticipate the overall materiality for the year ending 31 March 2021 to be in the region of £950k 
(£925k in the prior year).

After setting initial materiality, we continue to monitor materiality throughout the audit to ensure that it is set at 
an appropriate level.

Performance Materiality
Performance materiality is the amount or amounts set by the auditor at less than materiality for the financial 
statements as a whole to reduce, to an appropriately low level, the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected 
and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality for the financial statements as a whole. Our initial 
assessment of performance materiality is based on low inherent risk, meaning that we have applied 80% of 
overall materiality as performance materiality.

Misstatements
We accumulate misstatements identified during the audit that are other than clearly trivial. We set a level of 
triviality for individual errors identified (a reporting threshold) for reporting to the Audit and Governance 
Committee that is consistent with the level of triviality that we consider would not need to be accumulated 
because we expect that the accumulation of such amounts would not have a material effect on the financial 
statements. Based on our preliminary assessment of overall materiality, our proposed triviality threshold is £28k 
based on 3% of overall materiality. If you have any queries about this please do not hesitate to raise these with 
Mark Surridge.

Reporting to Audit and Governance Committee. 
The following three types of audit differences will be presented to the Audit and Governance Committee:

• summary of adjusted audit differences;

• summary of unadjusted audit differences; and 

• summary of disclosure differences (adjusted and unadjusted).

30

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 36



Appendix: Key communication points
A

31

P
age 37



Appendix: Key communication points

We value communication with Those Charged With Governance as a two way feedback process at the heart of 
our client service commitment. ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’ and ISA 
265 (UK) ‘Communicating Deficiencies In Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And 
Management’ specifically require us to communicate a number of points with you.

Relevant points that need to be communicated with you at each stage of the audit are outlined below.

Form, timing and content of our communications
We will present the following reports:

• Our Audit Strategy Memorandum;

• Our Audit Completion Report; and

• Auditor’s Annual Report

These documents will be discussed with management prior to being presented to yourselves and their 
comments will be incorporated as appropriate.

Key communication points at the planning stage as included in this Audit 
Strategy Memorandum
• Our responsibilities in relation to the audit of the financial statements;

• The planned scope and timing of the audit;

• Significant audit risks and areas of management judgement;

• Our commitment to independence;

• Responsibilities for preventing and detecting errors;

• Materiality and misstatements; and

• Fees for audit and other services.

Key communication points at the completion stage to be included in our 
Audit Completion Report
• Significant deficiencies in internal control;

• Significant findings from the audit;

• Significant matters discussed with management;

• Our conclusions on the significant audit risks and areas of 
management judgement;

• Summary of misstatements;

• Management representation letter;

• Our proposed draft audit report; and

• Independence.

32

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 38



33

Appendix: Key communication points

ISA (UK) 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’, ISA (UK) 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And Management’ and other ISAs (UK) specifically require 
us to communicate the following:

Required communication Where addressed

Our responsibilities in relation to the financial statement audit and those of management and those charged 
with governance.

Audit Strategy Memorandum

The planned scope and timing of the audit including any limitations, specifically including with respect to 
significant risks.

Audit Strategy Memorandum

With respect to misstatements:
• Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion;
• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods;
• A request that any uncorrected misstatement is corrected; and
• In writing, corrected misstatements that are significant.

Audit Completion Report

With respect to fraud communications:
• Enquiries of the Audit and Governance Committee to determine whether they have a knowledge of any 

actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity;
• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that fraud may exist; and
• A discussion of any other matters related to fraud.

Audit Completion Report and discussion at the Audit and Governance Committee. 
Audit Planning and Clearance meetings

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 39



34

Appendix: Key communication points

Required communication Where addressed

Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties including, 
when applicable:
• Non-disclosure by management;
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions;
• Disagreement over disclosures;
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations; and
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity.

Audit Completion Report

Significant findings from the audit including:
• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, 

accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;
• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management or were the subject 

of correspondence with management;
• Written representations that we are seeking;
• Expected modifications to the audit report; and
• Other matters, if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process or otherwise identified in the 

course of the audit that we believe will be relevant to the Audit and Governance Committee in the context of 
fulfilling their responsibilities.

Audit Completion Report

Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. Audit Completion Report

Where relevant, any issues identified with respect to authority to obtain external confirmations or inability to 
obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

Audit Completion Report

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 40



35

Appendix: Key communication points

Required communication Where addressed

Audit findings regarding non-compliance with laws and regulations where the non-compliance is material and 
believed to be intentional (subject to compliance with legislation on tipping off) and enquiry of the Audit and 
Governance Committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that may have a 
material effect on the financial statements and that the Audit and Governance Committee may be aware of.

Audit Completion Report and Audit and Governance Committee meetings

With respect to going concern, events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty;
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and presentation of the 

financial statements; and
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements.

Audit Completion Report

Reporting on the valuation methods applied to the various items in the annual financial statements including any 
impact of changes of such methods

Audit Completion Report 

Indication of whether all requested explanations and documents were provided by the entity Audit Completion Report 

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas Value for money Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements Appendices

P
age 41



Mazars

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax 
and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the 
expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the 
Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.

*where permitted under applicable country laws.

2 Chamberlain Square
Birmingham
B3 3AX

Mark Surridge

P
age 42



 

  Combined Assurance 
Status Report 

2020/21  

Boston Borough Council 

March 2021 

Page 43

Agenda Item 3



Chief Executive’s Summary 
 

Contents 
 
Overview of Assurance 

 
Page 1 

  

Chief Executive's Summary Page 2 

 
Strategic Risk Page 3 

  
Assistant Directors Key Messages  
Organisation & Corporate Services 
Support Services & Partnerships 
Housing & Wellbeing 
Towns Fund 
Regulation 
Operations 
Economic Growth 
Assets 
Planning 

Page 5 
Page 6 
Page 7 
Page 8 
Page 9 

Page 10 
Page 11 
Page 12 
Page 13 

 
Key Projects Page 14 

 
Key Partnerships Page 15 

  
The contacts at Assurance Lincolnshire are: 

John Scott CMIIA, Audit Manager (Head of Internal Audit) 

01522 873321, john.scott@lincoln.gov.uk 

Paul Berry MAAT, Principal Auditor  
 
01522 873836, paul.berry@lincoln.gov.uk 
 

Page 44



Overview of Assurance 
 

1 
Combined Assurance Status Report 2020/21 

Combined assurance is a structured means of identifying and mapping the main sources and 
types of assurance in the council and coordinating them to best effect. 

It enhances risk management by providing 
an effective and efficient framework of 
sufficient, regular and reliable evidence of 
assurance on organisational stewardship 
and management of major risks to the 
Council’s success. 

We do this using the 3 lines of defence 
model.  
 

 

 

 

Overall Assurance 
Direction of Travel 

Red Green Amber 

Up from 0% 
to 1% 

Up from 
14% to 31%  

Down from 
86% to 68%  

High impact on resources, 
significant costs likely, high 
impact on service delivery. 

 

Medium or short term impact 
on resources, costs covered 

within existing financial plans, 
low impact on service 

delivery. 

Monitor and be aware, activity 
to mitigate risk within existing 

service delivery plans. 

Page 45



 
 

2 
Combined Assurance Status Report 2020/21 

Chief Executive’s Summary 

The Council has established and varied 
assurance arrangements in place to 
manage risk and ensure services are 
delivered to a high standard. It’s pleasing to 
see this is working well and evidenced with 
high levels of assurance. 

The Councils have a much improved 
financial position since joining the Strategic 
Alliance and this is helping increase 
resilience in many service areas. This 
newfound advantage will be used to improve 
areas as required. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 46



Key Messages 
 

3 
Combined Assurance Status Report 2020/21 

Strategic Risks 

Good risk management is part of the way we work. It is about taking the right risks when making 
decisions or where we need to encourage innovation in times of major change – balancing risk, 
quality, cost and affordability.   

This put us in a stronger position to deliver our goals and provide excellent services.  

Our Strategic Risk Register is regularly reviewed, and our risks are being effectively managed.  

Risk Mitigating actions Risk rating 
Level of 
assurance 

 

Direction 
Of Travel 

Flood 

Working closely with the Environment Agency, 
Boston Barrier operational, Flood Risk Strategy 
& Strategic Risk Assessment, Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum 

Medium Amber 

  

= 
 

Growth and 
local economy 

Proactive approach, economic development 
plan, town bid 

Medium Green 

 

= 
 

Housing 

Local Plan. Delivery of Housing Strategy actions. 
Developing Transformation Programme to 
focus on wider housing enabling and housing 
delivery 

High Red 

 

= 
 

Welfare  
“Universal support – delivered locally” project 
underway with partners 

Medium Green 

 

= 
 

Health  Partnership working with health Medium Green 

 

= 
 

Town Centre 

Corporate Plan priorities, Local Plan & 
Conservation Area Management Plan, Heritage 
Strategy, Economic Development Plan, town 
bid 

Medium Green 

 

= 
 

Population 
change   

“Social impact of Population Change” report 
actions, East Midlands Strategic Migration 
Partnership, All Party Parliamentary Group on 
Migration 

Medium Green 

 

= 
 

Budget 

Medium Term Financial Strategy, budgetary 
process, sound level of reserves, continued 
close monitoring, refresh of Transformation 
Programme, Strategic Alliance 

High Amber 

 

= 
 

Capacity 

Recruitment & retention project completed, 
succession planning, HR policies & procedures, 
member training & development, Strategic 
Alliance 

Medium Green 

 

= 
 

Page 47



Key Messages 
 

4 
Combined Assurance Status Report 2020/21 

Risk Mitigating actions Risk rating 
Level of 
assurance 

 

Direction 
Of Travel 

Transformation 
Programme 

Transformation Programme, project 
management methodology, governance 
framework 

Medium Amber 

 

= 
 

Brexit 
Medium Term Financial Strategy, budgetary 
process, sound level of reserves, continued 
close monitoring 

Medium Green 

 

= 
 

Civil 
Contingency 

Community Risk Register monitored by the 
Lincolnshire Resilience Forum 

Medium Green 

 

= 
 

Compliance Internal controls, policies & procedures, annual 
governance statement, internal audit 

Medium Green 

 

= 
 

Reputation Policy, protocol and training for speaking to the 
press 

Medium Green 

 

= 
 

Strategic 
Alliance 

 Medium Amber 

 
New 

Key Risk Assurance  

High / Red High impact on resources, significant costs likely, high 
impact on service delivery  

Low level of confidence over 
the design and operation of 
controls, performance or 
management of risk 

 

Medium / 
Amber 
 

Medium or short term impact on resources, cost 
covered within existing financial plans, low impact on 
service delivery  

Medium level of confidence 
over the design and operation 
of controls, performance or 
management of risk 

 

Low / Green 
 

Monitor and be aware , activity to mitigate the risk 
within existing service delivery plans / management 
arrangements 

High level of confidence over 
the design and operation of 
controls, performance or 
management of risk 

 

 Direction of Travel (DoT)   

  
Improving 

  
Static 

 

= 

Page 48



Key Messages 
 

5 
Combined Assurance Status Report 2020/21 

AD Organisation & 
Corporate Services 

 
Democratic Services, Elections, Performance, 
Risk, DPO & Information Management, 
Consultation, Compliance, Legal, 
Communications, People Services, ICT, 
Transformation 
 

 

Critical Activities 
Red Amber 
None Human Resources 
 Project / Programme / Contract 

Management 
 Equality & Diversity 
 Members 
 Committee Services 
 Electoral Registration 
 Elections 
 Information Management 
 ICT Management / Strategy 
 ICT Infrastructure / Assets 
 ICT Security 
 ICT Support / Service Desk 
 ICT Telecommunications 
 ICT System Administration / 

Development / Projects 
 ICT Website 

Boston Borough Council is fortunate that is has 
a very dedicated team of officers who work hard 
with limited capacity/resources to ensure 
services are delivered to the community. 

Over the years back office services at the 
Council have seen a reduction in resources 
made necessary by Government funding 
reductions. 

The Alliance with ELDC has gone some way to 
increasing resilience in services but this doesn’t 
fully address the issue the Council faces, 
particularly in regard to HR and ICT Services. 

Resilience is an issue across the areas below 
but in each case a plan is in place to enable the 
Council to address the risks identified. A 
significant part of the solution to some of the 
risks identified for the Borough Council is the 
opportunity for it to take a shareholding in Public 
Sector Partnership Services and to transfer its 
ICT and HR services.  This will give the 
resilience needed in those areas. 

Covid has clearly also had an impact on 
resources, as it has Council-wide. 

Other risks identified are managed in a proactive 
way by the service. 

Human Resources 

Some resource issues and future uncertainties 

Project / Programme / Contract Management 

Lack of visibility of contracts across the Alliance. 
A shared contract register is being developed. 

Equality & Diversity 

Resource is very stretched 

Members 

Training requirements need to be addressed. 
New Code of Conduct being adopted. 

Committee Services 

Possible lack of resources 

Overall Assurance 
(Critical Activities only) 

R G A 

0  
15 

50% 

15 

50% 

Page 49



Key Messages 
 

6 
Combined Assurance Status Report 2020/21 

Electoral Registration 

Capacity in the team. 

Elections 

Capacity and potential staffing issues for an 
election 

Information Management 

Work to document the ROPA is behind target 
due to Covid impacts 

ICT 

Resource issues and uncertainty of future plans. 
Not currently PSN compliant. 

 

  

Page 50



Key Messages 
 

7 
Combined Assurance Status Report 2020/21 

AD Support Services & 
Partnerships 
 

Strategic contracts & partnerships, 
Procurement, Insurance, Accountancy, Treasury 
Management, Council Tax, Business Rates, 
Customer Services, Housing Benefits, Leisure 
Centres 
 

 

Critical Activities 
Red Amber 
None Geoff Moulder Leisure Centre 
 Customer Services 
 Housing Benefits & CTS 
 PCIDSS 
 MTFS / Efficiency Savings 
 Capital 

 

 

 

 

 

The focus of the Support Services & 
Partnerships service for 2020/21 is to develop 
the scope of services and partnerships across 
the Alliance and manage the impact of COVID 
19. 

Options to amalgamate Fraud support and 
Business Rates Assurance across the Alliance 
are in progress and a project to amalgamate 
Procurement services is due to be start in 
quarters 1-2 of the 2021/22 financial year, 
following a temporary solution initiated in quarter 
3 of the 2020/21 financial year. 

Geoff Moulder Leisure Centre 

COVID restrictions have reduced service 
provision and income levels 

Customer Services 

Service provision is good but possible resource 
issues to provide support to other areas and 
future uncertainty 

Housing Benefits & CTS 

Service provision is good but some resource 
issues and future uncertainties 

PCIDSS 

Not fully PCIDSS compliant 

MTFS / Efficiency Savings 

Challenging financial situation. 

Capital 

Strategy needs reviewing and Covid has 
impacted on spending in some areas. 

 

A Full Council decision on 15th February 2021 to 
become a shareholder in PSPSL, from the 
2021/22 financial year, will see a transfer of 
services and reduction in risk associated with 
resilience in financial and customer services. 

 

Overall Assurance 
(Critical Activities only) 

R G A 

0  
6 

24%  

19 

76% 

Page 51



Key Messages 
 

8 
Combined Assurance Status Report 2020/21 

AD Housing & Wellbeing 

 
Safeguarding, Health Liaison & Partnerships, 
Wellbeing, Deprivation, Inclusive Growth, 
Inequalities, Housing Assistance, Housing 
Standards, Housing Register, Homelessness, 
Housing Policy, Disabled Facilities Grants, 
Wellbeing Lincs 
 

 

Critical Activities 
Red Amber 
None Housing Register 
 Homelessness Prevention & 

Rough Sleeping 
 Housing Assistance 
 Empty Homes 
 Housing Standards 
 Safeguarding 

 

 

 

 

 

Areas assessed as amber are areas of 
continued development and focus:  

The Council will see a number of changes in 
2020/2021 that will align to the aspirations of the 
strategic alliance. Services, functions and teams 
will come together in key areas such as housing, 
homelessness, disabled facilities grants and 
safeguarding to ensure we can maximise impact 
and create greater resilience across our 
services. 

Alongside the review of the housing and 
homelessness services, the councils housing 
register and homelessness case management 
system will be replaced in 2021 leading to 
improvements for staff, customers and partners. 

The Council has seen significant improvements 
and success in addressing rough sleeping 
leading to a reduction in the number of people 
who find themselves sleeping rough, an ability to 
respond more quickly and a focus on longer 
term housing options as part of an overall 
housing pathway for Boston. For 2020/2021 this 
includes the delivery of additional units of 
accommodation for this purpose. The short term 
nature of Government funding for this work area 
will always create challenges – mitigated as far 
as possible by the service. The future 
Government strategy on supporting individuals 
with no recourse to public funds also creates an 
area of uncertainty and risk.  

The Council has been successful in securing 
external funding to accelerate and enhance its 
offer in a range of services including community 
support, Covid support, homelessness and 
rough sleeping.  

There is no doubt that Covid19 has had a 
significant impact on services in this service 
area and on the staff teams who have continued 
to deliver services with a focus on our 
communities. Similarly, these service areas will 
play a key role in Covid19 recovery in 
2021/2022. 

 

Overall Assurance 
(Critical activities only) 

R G A 

0 
7 

78% 

2 

22% 

Page 52



Key Messages 
 

9 
Combined Assurance Status Report 2020/21 

AD Towns Fund 

 

Towns Fund lead  

 

 

Critical Activities 
Red Amber 
None None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Stage I: Town Deal Boards have been 
established, and with both Council’s, approved 
the Town Investment Plan submissions for 
Boston, Skegness and Mablethorpe. The 
submission was made by the deadline of 30th 
October and an anticipated outcome is expected 
in early March. The Councils will be the 
accountable body for any funding allocation and 
will have the responsibility to provide monitoring 
reports to the Ministry for Housing, Communities 
and Local Government. Accelerated funding 
was received in October 2020 and will be spent 
by the date required, end of March 2022.  

Stage II: Capacity funding has also been applied 
for to support the development of the business 
cases over a period of up to 12 months.  

Resource: The Towns Fund work has been 
primarily led by a dedicated member of staff 
from the corporate management team. We have 
brought together capacity in East Lindsey and 
Boston through the strategic alliance creating a 
core of internal expertise to progress project 
development, maintain stakeholder engagement 
(particularly with match funders), continue 
regular board meetings and prepare for the 
business case development. 

 

 

Overall Assurance 
(Critical activities only) 

R G A 

0 
0 

  

1 

100% 

Page 53



Key Messages 
 

10 
Combined Assurance Status Report 2020/21 

AD Regulation 

 
Community Safety, CCTV, Health & Safety, 
Emergency Planning, Food, Noise, Pets, 
Building Control, Land Charges, Licensing, 
Carbon Reduction & Natural Environment 
 

 

Critical Activities 
Red Amber 
None Local Land Charges 
  

 

The Regulatory service areas have performed 
well overall despite the pandemic and adapted 
effectively to deliver essential services to the 
community and to business. 

Areas of particular challenge have been:  

Environmental Health, where constant change 
to business Covid safe legal requirements has 
necessitated frequent intervention with 
businesses, albeit enabled by a derogation from 
FSA inspection targets. EH Manager has also 
been coordinating the Covid Advisor scheme 
with MV.  

CCTV operations have been maintained without 
interruption despite difficulties managing shift 
rotas due to Covid related absences and 
vacancy management. Staff resources are 
frequently stretched but coping. 

Emergency Planning has been front and 
centre of the Covid response and recovery 
efforts but has delivered on the Councils 
obligations as a partner and category 1 
responder. This has only been possible due to a 
concerted effort and support from colleagues 
and the leadership team across the alliance. 

Building Control has delivered without 
interruption throughout the last year and 
continues to perform well. The alliance with East 
Lindsey has provided an early opportunity to join 
up and provided an integrated building control 
service across the alliance. An interim manager 
has been appointed to support the 
transformation work needed to unify the teams  

Land Charges & Licensing. Whilst the 
Licensing team have adapted and managed 
delivery of critical services, support from ELDC 
has been necessary. Licensing staff have flexed 
to support LLC colleagues who have been 
facing a deluge of search enquiries due to the 
Stamp Duty Holiday. A significant backlog of 
searches is currently being addressed using 
overtime, redeployed staff and support from 
ELDC but there is a 3 fold increase in workload 
and a deadline of 31st March looming. 

 

 

Overall Assurance 
(Critical activities only) 

R G A 

0 
1  

9% 

10 

91% 

Page 54



Key Messages 
 

11 
Combined Assurance Status Report 2020/21 

AD Operations 

 
Waste Collection, Fleet Maintenance, 
Arboriculture, Street Cleansing, Grounds 
Maintenance, Play Areas, Corporate Health & 
Safety, Public Toilets, Market Operations 
 

 

Critical Activities 
Red Amber 
None Refuse Collection & Recycling 
 Street Cleansing 
 Depot 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

These are highly visible frontline services and it 
is important that the risks to these critical 
services are monitored.  

Refuse Collection & Recycling 

Service delivery is challenging and could be 
affected by the new paper & card service. The 
recent investment in a new refuse collection 
fleet and round restructure has enabled the 
waste service to reach a green level of 
assurance. 

Street Cleansing 

Increased fly tipping is causing work pressures 
due to vacancies. 

Depot 

Capacity issues for future expansion need 
resolving. 

 

  

Overall Assurance 
(Critical activities only) 

R G A 

0 
3 

30%  

7 

70% 

Page 55



Key Messages 
 

12 
Combined Assurance Status Report 2020/21 

AD Economic Growth 

 
Economic Development, GLLEP, Funding, 
Business Support, Skills & Education, Market 
Towns, Visitor Economy, Markets Promotions, 
Museums, Historic Environment, Place 
Development, Strategic Capital Project 
Development 
 

 

Critical Activities 
Red Amber 
None Cultural, Historic & Public Realm 
 Arts, Heritage & Tourism 
 Town Centre Promotion & 

Events 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cultural, Historic & Public Realm 

Covid has impacted on normal operations and 
development works. 

Arts, Heritage & Tourism 

Covid has impacted on normal operations and 
development works. Most notably disrupting the 
operation of the Guildhall as a museum and 
venue for hire. 

Town Centre Promotion & Events 

Covid has significantly impacted the events 
programme. It has not been possible to plan 
events with any certainty of them being able to 
run, contingency and carry forward 
arrangements have been put in place wherever 
possible. 

The critical activities rated amber in this 
assurance report are largely as a result of the 
interruption to business as usual activity.  

The team has been resilient and lead on the 
Recovering the High Street Safely (RSHH) 
initiatives in Boston, responding to changing 
levels of restrictions due to covid-19.  

Despite the disruption the team has also 
development projects in relation to Boston’s 
Towns Fund bid enabling a compelling Town 
Investment Plan to be submitted to Government 
in October 2020. The Accelerator Fund project 
“Experience Boston” has been taken forward 
and will be completed by 31 March 2021.  

Business support and support for the visitor 
economy and market towns is being addressed 
through the Strategic alliance covid19 recovery 
plan which will be published by the end of the 
financial year.  

A service review across the alliance staff cohort 
has been commenced in February 2021 to 
better aligned resources to priorities going 
forward. 

  

Overall Assurance 
(Critical activities only) 

R G A 

0 
3 

38%  

5 

62% 

Page 56



Key Messages 
 

13 
Combined Assurance Status Report 2020/21 

AD Assets 

 
Commercial Rents, Car Parking & Enforcement, 
Repairs & Maintenance, Business Centres, 
Project Management, House Building, 
Crematorium, Caretaking, Commercialisation 
Lead 
 

 

Critical Activities 
Red Amber 
Princess Royal 
Sports Arena 

Strategic Asset 
Management 

 Land & Property 
 Crematorium & Cemeteries 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Land & Property including Princess Royal 
Sports Arena 

As far as it is reasonable, justified and 
proportionate to do so, we will help to support 
existing and distressed businesses that occupy 
council owned property through sympathetic and 
supportive management of rent arrears and 
other debts.   

We will do this by working with each tenant, 
taking into account the circumstances and facts 
to hand; the prevailing and former operating 
environments of the business and future 
business forecasting.   

We will make decisions at the right level and 
consider risk in a broad context; risk to the 
Council, risk to the economy, risk to individuals, 
risk to the community and risk to the 
environment 

Strategic Asset Management 

We will be innovative but realistic in our 
approach to asset management and develop our 
strategy accordingly. 

Crematorium & Cemeteries 

We will closely monitor the performance of our 
new cremation equipment and work with our 
contractor to secure a permanent flueing 
solution and develop a long term solution, 
including the potential addition of abatement. 

  

Overall Assurance 
(Critical activities only) 

R G A 
1 

12% 

3 

38%  

4 

50% 

Page 57



Key Messages 
 

14 
Combined Assurance Status Report 2020/21 

AD Planning 

 
Development Management, Planning Policy, 
Planning Enforcement, Coastal Defences, 
Watercourse Management 
 

 

Critical Activities 
Red Amber 
None None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The department continues to perform well with 
no areas of concern identified. 

Development Management continues to support 
economic and housing growth within the 
Borough and performance exceeds national 
indicators. 

The Local Plan continues to perform well, as 
identified by the delivery rates in areas such as 
housing. 

Considerable work has been undertaken in 
respect of S106 monitoring, and the Councils 
Infrastructure Funding Statement has been 
produced and submitted to Government.  

Planning Enforcement remains active, and 
continues to take action as necessary, although 
a number of actions are outstanding owing to 
restrictions as a result of Covid-19.  

On the whole, despite numerous internal and 
external factors the service continues to provide 
exceptional performance. In addition, the 
Strategic Alliance has brought additional 
resilience (particularly in DM Case Officer 
support) with ELDC Officers assisting with the 
determination of a number of applications at 
various points through the year. This 
relationship and mutual resilience will only 
improve as the Alliance progresses towards a 
one team approach. 

 

 

 

Overall Assurance 
(Critical activities only) 

R G A 

0 
0 

 

4 

100% 

Page 58



Key Messages 
 

15 
Combined Assurance Status Report 2020/21 

Key Projects 

 

Project management is deemed to be working 
effectively across the Council but there is a lack 
of visibility of contracts across the Alliance. 

To address this a single project management 
approach and contract register will be 
introduced for 2021/22. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Overall Assurance 
Direction of travel 

R G A 

 

0 0 

 

12 

100% 

Page 59



Key Messages 
 

16 
Combined Assurance Status Report 2020/21 

Key Partnerships 
The Council recognises that effective partnership 
working is key to the achievement of many of its 
goals and desired outcomes. In that regard it is 
essential that any partnerships entered into, or 
are currently in operation, deliver and their on-
going relevance and effectiveness are continually 
evaluated. 

 

 

 

Partnership Assurance 
Red Amber 
None Lincolnshire Community 

Safety Partnership 
 

 

 

Key partnerships include; 

 NKDC (Payroll) 
 South East Lincolnshire Joint Strategic 

Planning Committee 
 Lincolnshire Waste Partnership 
 Lincolnshire Resilience Forum 

 

 

 

Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership (AD 
Regulation) 

Some strategic priorities are outstanding owing 
to the pandemic. 

 

 

A shared approach to partnership governance 
will be developed for the Alliance. 

 

 

 

Overall Assurance 
Direction of travel 

R G A 

0%  80% 20%  

Page 60



Internal Audit
Progress Report

For all your assurance needs

Boston Borough Council
March 2021

Page 61

Agenda Item 4



This report has been prepared solely for the use of Members and Management of Boston Borough Council. Details may be made 
available to specified external organisations, including external auditors, but otherwise the report should not be used or referred to in 
whole or in part without prior consent.  No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is 
not intended for any other purpose.

The matters raised in this report are only those that came to our attention during the course of our work – there may be 
weaknesses in governance, risk management and the system of internal control that we are not aware of because they did not form 
part of our work programme, were excluded from the scope of individual audit engagements or were not bought to our attention.
The opinion is based solely the work undertaken as part of the agreed internal audit plan.

Contents

John Scott - Audit Manager  (Head of Internal Audit)
john.scott@lincoln.gov.uk

Paul Berry – Principal Auditor
paul.berry@lincoln.gov.uk

Page 2Key Messages
Introduction
Summary
Assurances

Page 2Internal Audit work completed
Overview of Assurances
Audit Reports at Draft
Work in Progress

Page 9Appendices
1 Limited Assurance Reports
2 Assurance Definitions
3 Audit Recommendations
4 2020/21 Audit Plan to Date

1

Page 7

Page 6

Page 62



Introduction
The purpose of this report is to:

• Provide details of the audit work during the period January to February
• Advise on progress with the 2020/21 plan
• Raise any other matters that may be relevant to the Audit Committee role

2

1
SUBSTANTIAL 
ASSURANCE

Key Messages
All remaining 20/21 audits have been started and we still 
expect that the Plan will be substantially complete by the end 
of the financial year (reports will be at draft stage but may not 
have been finalised).

One piece of work was completed in this period, two are at 
draft report stage and four pieces of work are in progress.

Assurances / Consultancy
One assurance review has been completed;
• Covid Assessment - Substantial

Note: The assurance expressed is at the time of issue of the 
report but before the full implementation of the agreed 
management action plan.  The definitions for each level are 
shown in Appendix 1. 

0
HIGH 

ASSURANCE

0
LIMITED 

ASSURANCE

0
LOW 

ASSURANCE

0
CONSULTANCY

Page 63



3

Substantial Assurance

Covid 
Assessment

A review has been undertaken, with Assistant Directors and selected 
service leads using a Covid risk register compiled by IA, to assess 
whether the lockdown had any detrimental impact on the Council’s risk 
and control environment and any changes had been appropriately 
considered and managed.

We found that there have been no detrimental impacts on the Council’s 
risk and control environment. Although we haven’t found any areas 
requiring further work or improvement, we are unable to award High 
assurance due to the relatively limited nature of the work that has been 
undertaken.

Most Assistant Directors felt that they were able to give a Red-Amber-
Green rating for their risks in our Covid risk register but some didn’t, 
having been responsible for new service areas for only a couple of 
months. Of the areas that were assessed none were rated as Red and 
only a few were rated as Amber – Transformation Programme, HR, 
Information Management, IT, Disabled Facilities Grants, Homelessness, 
Housing Standards, Housing Register. An Amber rating is not a concern 
and all areas have been assessed again as part of the update of the 
Combined Assurance Map that has just been completed.

From a functional perspective we have been assured that processes / 
controls are operating without any changes, other than staff being at 
home rather than in the office or operating in accordance with Covid 
safe working practices. All AD’s acknowledge the significant amount of 
work that was done by the IT section at the start of the lockdown to 
allow home working to happen.

All AD’s identified potential risks around staff wellbeing, performance 
management and integration under the Alliance. These are all being 
considered at a corporate level so haven't been explored further as part 
of this review.

Continues on next page.

Page 64



4

Substantial Assurance

Covid 
Assessment

We identified a small number of potentially significant risk areas;

a) Compensation claim to the Government for income losses (Amber 
risk)

b) Use of Procurement Cards (Amber risk)
c) Security of data and documentation obtained in the course of 

processing Business Grants (Amber risk)

These were discussed further with appropriate service leads and 
assurances have been given that they are being appropriately 
managed, so no further work is considered necessary.

IT related risks have not been examined as part of this audit as a 
separate IT audit will provide assurance on this area.

In it’s 2019/20 Annual Governance Statement the Council included a 
Covid-19 related action to “assess the longer term disruption and 
consequences arising from the pandemic”. Progress with this action will 
be monitored and reported in the 2020/21 AGS. 

Page 65



Internal Audit Work

5

Audit Reports at Draft Stage
• Council Tax 
• ICT Security Assurance

Work in Progress
• Housing Benefits & Council Tax Support
• Payroll
• Accountancy Key Controls
• Governance, Risk & Fraud

Other Significant work
Combined Assurance
The annual Combined Assurance process has been completed and an updated Report 
is being presented separately to the March committee.
We worked closely with the ELDC Internal Audit team in order to streamline the process 
for the Alliance.

2021/22 Internal Audit Plan
A Draft Plan is being presented separately to the March committee.
We worked closely with the ELDC Internal Audit team to produce a plan that is relevant 
to the Alliance, and as a result there are a number of joint audits.

Audit Recommendations
A detailed update giving the position as at 31st December is attached at Appendix 3.
Recommendations are being implemented and a number have been extended due to 
Covid or the Alliance.
There are none that we feel need to be bought to your attention.

Page 66



Benchmarking
Internal Audit's performance is measured against a range of indicators.  

The statistics below show our performance on key indicators year to 
date. 

Performance on Key Indicators (20/21)

100%
Rated our 

service Good 
to Excellent

6

Achievement 
of Audit KPI’s 

to date

77%

100%
100%

100%82% 100%

100% 100%

Plan Span Draft
Issue

Final
Issue

2020/21 Target to date

77% Plan 
Completed

Page 67



Other matters of interest
A summary of matters that will be of particular interest to Audit 
committee members 

7

There are none at this time.

Page 68



There are none.

Appendix 1 Audits with Limited or Low Assurance

9

Page 69



Appendix 2 Assurance Definitions

10

High
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a high level 
of confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of 
risks, and the operation of controls and / or performance.  

The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low.  
Controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are 
operating effectively.

Substantial
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a 
substantial level of confidence (assurance) on service delivery 
arrangements, management of risks, and operation of controls and / 
or performance.

There are some improvements needed in the application of controls 
to manage risks. However, the controls have been evaluated as 
adequate, appropriate and operating sufficiently so that the risk of the 
activity not achieving its objectives is medium to low.  

Limited Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a a limited 
level of confidence on service delivery arrangements, management 
of risks, and operation of controls and / or performance.

The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be 
operating or are inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are 
unlikely to give a reasonable level of confidence (assurance) that the 
risks are being managed effectively.  It is unlikely that the activity will 
achieve its objectives.

Low

Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified significant 
concerns on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, 
and operation of controls and / or performance.

There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key 
risks or the controls have been evaluated as not adequate, 
appropriate or are not being effectively operated. Therefore the risk 
of the activity not achieving its objectives is high.

Page 70



10

Appendix 3 Audit Recommendations

Audit Recommendation Status at end December 2020. 

Activity Issue 
Date

Assurance Total 
recs

Recs 
Imp

Priority of Overdue 
Recommendations

Recs 
not 
due

High Medium Low
Economic 
Development

Mar 19 Substantial 3 2 0 1 0

The outstanding recommendation is for Cabinet to receive the ED Action Plan as 
a supporting document to the Corporate Plan. 
The target date has been further extended to March 2021 (original date was Sept 
19) - this action was initially delayed due to the delay in producing the new 
Corporate Plan, the further extension is because the ED Plan needs to be revised 
to reflect the current economic position.

IT Infrastructure 
Follow Up

Apr 19 Substantial 3 2 0 1 0

The outstanding recommendation is to finalise the Code of Connection.
The target date has been further extended to Dec 20 (original date was April 19) 
due to Covid and joint working with ELDC. This action will transfer to PSPS Ltd 
on 1 April 21.
.

Complaints May 19 Substantial 10 6 0 4 0

The outstanding recommendations are to review some requirements of the policy 
to see if they are still relevant and to produce an annual complaints report.
The target dates have been further extended from Dec 20 to Dec 21 (original 
dates were March 20) due to a review of the complaints process across the 
strategic alliance in 21/22 to develop a single approach.

Website / 
Digitalisation

May 19 Substantial 5 3 2 0 0

2 (High) recs have been further extended to Mar 21 (original date was Sept 19) 
due to the impact of lockdown on priorities.

Health & Safety Oct 19 Substantial 5 4 0 1 0 0

4 recs implemented by target date (including 2 High priority).
The outstanding recommendation is to provide H&S training for members. Work  
started but has been delayed due to Covid. The target date has been extended to 
March 2021 (was originally March 2020).

Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy

Oct 19 High 2 0 0 0 0 2

The recommendations are not due until March 2021 and March 2022.

Page 71



11

Activity Issue 
Date

Assurance Total 
recs

Recs 
Imp

Priority of Overdue 
Recommendations

Recs 
not 
due

High Medium Low

Scrutiny Dec 19 Substantial 4 3 0 1 0 0

The outstanding recommendation is to produce a schedule of policies – it has 
been further extended to March 2021 (original target date April 20) to allow work 
across the strategic alliance.

Values & 
Behaviours

Feb 20 Consultancy 2 0 0 2 0 0

The outstanding recommendations are regarding the Code of Conduct (update 
and officer / member training). The target dates have been extended to March 
2021 (originally Sept 2020) to allow the new LGA Model Code of Conduct to be 
used once it has been adopted.

Treasury 
Management 
Key Controls

Feb 20 Substantial 2 1 0 1 0 0

The outstanding recommendation is to update the Treasury Management 
Practices. The target date has been further extended to Sept 21 (original was 
March 20) due to the move to PSPS and the need to align it across the Strategic 
Alliance.

HMO Licensing Jun 20 Substantial 4 3 0 0 0 1

1 recommendation due April 21.

Governance, 
Risk, Counter 
Fraud

Jul 20 Substantial 2 1 1 0 0 0

The outstanding recommendation (High priority) is to complete the Publication 
Scheme and the target date has been extended to March 2021 (originally Sept 
2020 to allow work across the Strategic Alliance.

Parking Decision 
Making

Sep 20 Consultancy 2 2 0 0 0 0

Both recommendations were implemented by the target date

Strategic 
Alliance – TOR / 
MOU

Dec 20 Consultancy 8 0 0 0 0 8

The recommendations are not yet due

Page 72



12

Activity Issue 
Date

Assurance Total 
recs

Recs 
Imp

Priority of Overdue 
Recommendations

Recs 
not 
due

High Medium Low
NNDR Jan 21 High 2 2 0 0 0 0

Both recommendations were implemented by the target date. 

Page 73



Appendix 4 2020/21 Audit Plan Progress

12

Audit Scope of Work Start 
Planned 
date

Start 
Actual 
date

End 
Actual 
date

Status/ Rating

Covid-19 
Assurance 
(NEW)

Determine any impacts on 
the risk & control 
environment.

Sept 20 Oct 20 Jan 21 Substantial 
assurance

Decision making 
processes (NEW)

Car parking (A+G Request) Aug 20 Aug 20 Sept 
20

N/A
Consultancy

Strategic Alliance
(NEW)

Governance arrangements 
(A+G Request).

August 
2020

Aug 20 Dec 20 N/A
Consultancy

Project / 
Programme 
Management

Transformation 
Programme, Corporate 
Plan, service plans

Defer May be covered in 21/22 as part 
of a high level Alliance piece of 
work

Contract 
Management

Self-assessment on key 
contracts

Defer In the 21/22 Plan

Towns Fund Investment Plan production Defer In the 21/22 Plan

Building Control Service overview Defer In the 21/22 Plan – general 
income audit 

Trade Waste Service delivery & income Defer In the 21/22 Plan – general 
income audit 

Geoff Moulder 
Leisure Centre

Income collection & cash 
handling

Defer In the 21/22 Plan – general 
income audit 

Boston Town Area 
Committee

Governance arrangements 
& operation.

Defer Not in the 21/22 Plan – other 
areas are a higher priority

Council Tax Income collection, 
authorisation, CTS 
Hardship Fund

Dec 20 Dec 20 Report being 
agreed

Housing Benefits Risk Based Audit Jan 21 Jan 21 In progress

NNDR Income collection, 
authorisation, Payment 
Holiday, Business Grants

Nov 20 Nov 20 Jan 21 High 
assurance

Payroll Risk Based Audit Feb 21 Feb 21 In progress

Page 74



13

Audit Scope of Work Start 
Planned 
date

Start 
Actual 
date

End 
Actual 
date

Status/ 
Rating

Accountancy (5) Key Controls Mar 21 Mar 
21

In 
progress

Combined 
Assurance (6)

Production of the 2021 
Assurance Map and report

Dec 20 Nov 
20

Mar 
21

Completed

IA Strategy & 
new Audit Plan 
(2)

Production of 2021/22 Audit 
Plan

Q4 Jan 
21

Mar 
21

Completed

Annual Report 
(2)

Production of the annual audit 
report 19/20

Q1 Q1 June
2020

Completed

ICT (10) IT Security - assurance mapping 
against ISO 27001

Oct 20 Oct 
20

In 
progress

Governance, 
Risk & Fraud (5)

High level work to inform the 
annual audit opinion

Q4 Mar 
21

In 
progress

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

  Internal Audit 

Draft 2021/22 Plan 

 
 

Boston Borough Council 
 

March 2021 

 Page 77

Agenda Item 5



 

 

Contents 
The Planning Process Page 1 
Introduction 
Developing the plan 
Updating the plan 

 

  

Delivery and Focus Page 2 
Delivering the plan 
Audit focus 
Annual internal audit opinion 

 

  

Appendices Page 4 
A – Internal audit plan 
B – Areas not on the audit plan 
C – Head of internal audit's opinion 
D – Working protocols 
E – Our quality assurance framework 
 
 

 

The contacts at Assurance Lincolnshire are: 

John Scott 

Audit Manager (Head of Internal Audit) 

John.scott@lincoln.gov.uk 

 
Paul Berry 

Principal Auditor 

Paul.berry@lincoln.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 78



 

1 
 

The Planning Process 

Introduction 

This report sets out the Internal Audit Plan as at 
1st April 2021.  The plan details the activities to 
be audited and the indicative scope for each 
audit.  The draft plan gives you an opportunity to 
comment on the plan and the priorities that we 
have established.  

Our audit plan delivers assurance within agreed 
resources, which remain the same as last year at 
145 days.    

The plan is amended throughout the year to 
reflect changing assurance needs.  

In Appendices A to E we provide for you 
information details of: 

 Auditable Activities  
 How the draft plan achieves the 

requirements of the Audit and Accounts 
Committee and Head of Internal Audit 

 Our Working Protocols and Performance 
 Our Quality Assurance Framework 

Developing the plan  

The internal audit plan has been developed 
using various sources including our external 
intelligence, local knowledge and the 
meetings held with Assistant Directors and the 
Senior Leadership Team as a whole.  Figure 1 
shows the key sources of information that has 
helped inform the plan.    

We have prioritised our audit work taking account 
of the impact an activity will have on the Council 
if it fails.  The criteria for determining priority are:  

 Significance - how important is the activity 
to the Council in achieving its objectives, key 
plans and in managing its key risks.  We look 
at both financial loss and strategic impact. 

 
 Sensitivity - how much interest would there 

be if things went wrong and what would be 
the reputational and political impact. 

 
 Level of Assurance – we assess the 

current level of assurance evaluating 
reliability and contribution to the Head of 
Internal Audit annual opinion on governance, 
risk and control. 

 
 Time– when it will happen (this will 

determine when the best time to do the Audit 
is). 

 

Updating the Plan 

Through the year we will liaise with the Council 
and collect business intelligence that identifies 
emerging audits which could be included in the 
plan according to priority.  

The primary source of business intelligence will 
be the regular liaison meetings between our 
team and the nominated liaison contact, other 
sources of intelligence will include:- 

 Committee reports 
 Key stakeholders 
 Risk Registers 

 
 
 

Internal  
Audit 
Plan

Business Plan

Assurance 
requirements 

for the Head of 
Internal Annual 

Opinion

Combined 
Assurance 

Model  &  your  
Assurance Map

Our  Knowledge 
and previous 

findings

Risk Profile & 
Risk Registers

Management

Requests

Emerging Issues 

Figure 1 – Key sources of information 

Page 79



 

2 
 

Delivery and Focus 

Delivering the Plan 

The audit plan has been developed to enable us 
to respond to changes during the year.  Whilst 
every effort will be made to deliver the plan, we 
recognise that we need to be flexible and 
prepared to revise audit activity – responding to 
changing circumstances or emerging risks.  The 
plan is therefore a statement of intent – our 
liaison meetings with senior management will 
enable us to firm up audit activity during the year. 

The aim is to deliver the audits included in the 
plan in accordance with the schedule which will 
be devised once the plan is agreed.  The 
schedule will be drawn up following liaison with 
the various auditees and Assistant Directors.  
Resources will then be allocated accordingly to 
the audits at the specified times.  It is therefore 
important that any changes required to the audits 
or the schedule are notified to Internal Audit as 
soon as possible to avoid abortive time being 
spent on audits and for us to reallocate 
resources. 

The Council's Internal Audit Plan is 145 Days. 
The core team who will be delivering your 
Internal Audit plan are:  

Audit Focus for 2021/22 

In the following table we provide information on 
key audit areas and the rationale for their 

inclusion in the audit strategy and plan.   
 
The impact of Covid on the public sector has 
been unprecedented. We carried out some 
assurance work in this area during 2020/21 and 
our plan remains flexible to take account of this 
and other evolving risks. 
 
Appendix A outlines the various audits to be 
undertaken within each area.  Appendix B 
contains those areas which we have not been 
able to include in the plan, but management may 
wish to consider whether they should be 
included.  

Area Reason for inclusion 
 
Financial 
Governance 

Providing assurance that key 
financial controls are in place 
and operating effectively during 
the year across all areas of the 
Council.  This work provides 
the Section 151 Officer with a 
key element of his assurance 
that the Council has effective 
arrangements for the proper 
administration of its financial 
affairs.   

 
Governance 
& Risk 

Providing assurance that key 
governance controls are in 
place and are operating 
effectively.  These cross 
cutting audits focus on the 
Council's second line of 
assurance - corporate rather 
than service level systems.  

 
Critical 
Activities 

Our discussions with Assistant 
Directors identified some 
critical activities where a 
potential audit would provide 
independent assurance over 
the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and 
governance processes.  There 
is a particular focus on those 
relating to the services 
transferred back in-house and 
their integration back into the 
Council as well as those 
affected by the current climate. 

 
Project 
Assurance 

There are a number of critical 
projects identified by the 
Council.  Projects have been 
flagged as a key area for 
2021/22.   

 
ICT Technology and 

associated threats and 
opportunities continue to 
evolve at a pace.  The 
effectiveness of ICT has a 
significant impact on how 
well the Council works.  
We will seek to provide 
assurance that key 
controls comply with 
industry best practice and 
are operating effectively.  

Page 80



 

3 
 

Area Reason for inclusion 
 
Follow Up In accordance with our follow 

up protocol we will carry out 
follow up work when any High 
priority recommendations are 
implemented to provide 
assurance that identified 
control improvements have 
been effectively implemented 
and the risks mitigated.   

Working with management we 
also track the implementation 
of agreed management actions 
for all audit reports issued. 

 
Combined 
Assurance 

Working with management we 
co-ordinate the levels of 
assurance across the 
Council's critical activities, key 
risks, projects and 
partnerships – producing a 
Combined Assurance Status 
report in January 2022. 

 
Consultancy 
Assurance 

At the request of management, 
we undertake specific reviews 
where they may have some 
concern or are looking for 
some advice on a specific 
matter or around governance, 
risk and controls for a 
developing system.  Such 
reviews are not normally given 
an audit opinion. 

 
 
Annual Internal Audit Opinion  
 
We are satisfied that the level and mix of 
resources - together with the areas covered in 
the plan - will enable the Head of Internal Audit to 
provide their annual internal audit opinion. 

 

Page 81



 

4 
 

Appendix A – Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 

Our proposed planned audits are listed below.   

Audit Area Assurance Sought 

In
te

rn
al

 A
u

d
it

  
R

is
k

 A
ss

es
s

m
en

t 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 M
a

p
 

R
A

G
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
is

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

  
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
eq

u
e

st
 

Financial Governance 
Key Control Testing Delivery of key control testing to enable 

Head of Internal Audit to form an opinion 
on the Council’s financial control 
environment. Likely to be bank, debtors, 
creditors & treasury management. 
Coverage may change as the relationship 
with PSPS progresses. 

N/A 
 

G    

Income Review income controls in key areas to 
ensure all income due is being collected.  
To be selected from GMLC, Trade Waste, 
Green Waste, Parking, Development 
Management & Building Control. 

A G    

Value for Money 
(MTFS) 

To provide assurance on VFM 
arrangements across the Council to 
support External Audit’s annual 
commentary in line with the new code of 
practice and the CIPFA Financial Code. 
Joint with ELDC. 

 A    

Governance and Risk 
Contract 
Management 

To provide assurance that there are 
effective arrangements in place to ensure 
that all contracts are recorded, allocated 
contract managers and managed 
effectively. 
Joint with ELDC. 

R A    

Critical Activities 
Flood Management 
 

To provide assurance that adequate 
arrangements are in place between the 
council and the LLFA to both prevent and 
respond to flooding – Client wide review. 
Joint with ELDC. 

G G    

Workforce Plan To provide assurance that there is an 
effective Workforce Plan which meets the 
changing needs of the Council and the 
demographics and skills of staff and to 
ensure that key risks have been identified. 
Joint with ELDC. 

A G    

Page 82



 

5 
 

Audit Area Assurance Sought 

In
te

rn
al

 A
u

d
it

 R
is

k 
A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 M
a

p
 

R
A

G
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
is

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

R
eq

u
e

st
 

Carbon Reduction To provide assurance that he plans in 
place to tackle climate change are 
relevant, fit for purpose and achievable. 
Joint with ELDC. 

 A G    

Strategic Alliance To provide assurance on governance 
arrangements. Areas covered to be 
selected from programme & project 
management, finance, risk management, 
governance & oversight, PSPS integration, 
HR. 
Joint with ELDC. 

 R G  
 

  

Brexit To provide assurance that key Brexit risks 
are being managed – legal, procurement, 
data protection, HR & community 
engagement. 
Joint with ELDC. 

R A  
 

  

Project Assurance 
Towns Fund & PE21 
 

To provide assurance that appropriate 
programme and project management 
arrangements are in place. 
Joint with ELDC. 

R G  
 

 
 

 

ICT 
IT Security Follow up of a previous audit. 

 
R A    

ICT Projects To provide assurance that appropriate 
programme & project management 
arrangements are in place. 
Coverage may change as the relationship 
with PSPS progresses. 

R A    

Follow-up 

Follow-ups 
Follow-up of recommendations made for 
the progress report and on a sample basis.   

N/A N/A     

Combined Assurance 

Combined 
Assurance 

Updating the assurance map and 
completing the Combined Assurance 
report. 

N/A N/A    

Days 125     
 

Page 83



 

6 
 

 

 

 

  

Grand Total 
 

Total   

Internal Audit Days 
 

145 

 
Non-Audit 
 

 
 

Advice and liaison  
Annual Report  
Audit Committee  
Review IA Strategy and Planning  
Days 20 

Page 84



 

7 
 

Appendix B –Areas not included in the current plan 

These are the areas which are not on the plan but are important. 
 
Auditable Areas 

 
Assurance Sought 
 
 
 
 
 
 In

te
rn

al
 A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 A

ss
es

s
m

e
n

t 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 M
a

p
 

R
A

G
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

S
tr

at
e

g
ic

 R
is

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 

M
an

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
R

eq
u

e
st

 

Critical Activities 
Project / Programme 
Management 

To provide assurance that 
the shared PM approach is 
operating effectively. 

R A 
   

CCTV To provide assurance that 
the service is operating in 
accordance with 
Regulations and best 
practice. 

R A 

   

Housing Register To provide assurance that 
the new IT system and 
processes deliver a well-
controlled and improved 
service.  

R A 

   

Performance Management To provide assurance that 
the shared performance 
management approach is 
operating effectively. 

R G 

   

Refuse Collection & 
Recycling 

To provide assurance that 
the service is operating 
effectively and efficiently. 

R A 
   

Page 85



 

8 
 

Appendix C – Head of Internal Audit's Opinion 

Our work is carried out in conformance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  These 
require that the scope of Internal Audit covers the whole range of the Council activities – seeking to 
provide an annual internal audit opinion on the governance, risk and internal control environment of the 
Council which has been established to: 

 Achieve strategic objectives 
 Ensure effective and efficient operational systems and programmes. 
 Safeguard assets and interests of all kinds (including risks that relate to work it undertakes 

through partnerships) 
 Ensure the reliability and integrity of financial and operational information. 
 Ensure economic, efficient and effective use of council resources. 
 Ensure compliance with established policies, procedures, laws, regulations and contracts. 

 

Our Internal Audit Strategy 

It is important that the Internal Audit function focusses its work on what matters most to you – providing 
insight, assurance and added value to the Council. Whilst we have a plan in place this is flexible and 
may be changed during the year enabling greater flexibility and responsiveness – ensuring each piece of 
work is the right one, delivered at the right time.  The plan is therefore more dynamic and responsive – 
essential for an effective Internal Audit service. 

Our internal audit activity and plan has been driven by the Council's key objectives within the corporate 
plan, your key risks and critical service areas identified as part of the Combined Assurance Map.  

We aim to align our work with other assurance functions – seeking to look at different ways of leveraging 
assurance to help us to maximise the best use of the Internal Audit resource and other assurance 
functions in the Council. 

By adopting this approach, it is possible to give the Council comfort that there is a comprehensive risk 
and assurance framework with no potential gaps.  We are then able to use our audit planning tool to 
target resources.  This will minimise duplication of effort through sharing and coordinating activities with 
management and other management oversight functions. 

We have identified the level of assurances in place by using the "Three lines of assurance" model – See 
Figure 2.  

 

Figure 2 – The three lines of defence 

Page 86



 

9 
 

 
Our Internal Audit Strategy also seeks to co-ordinate our work with other assurance providers where we 
can.  In particular we liaise with External Audit to ensure the Council gets the most out of its combined 
audit resource – keeping audit fees low.   

 

 

 

Page 87



 

10 
 

Appendix D – Working Protocols 

Our approach to delivering of internal audit work 
is based on a clear protocol detailed in the Audit 
Charter.  How this works in practice is set out at 
the bottom. 
 
Our performance is monitored by the Section 
151 Officer and the Audit & Governance 
Committee - measured against 3 key areas: 

 Delivery of planned work. 
 Timeliness (contemporary reporting). 
 Quality and Impact of work (communicating 

results / added value). 

Strong communication is fundamental to quality 
delivery and maintaining trusting relationships.  
We keep management informed in accordance 
with agreed protocols including: 

 Agreeing potential audit work for the 
forthcoming  year 

 Providing quarterly updates to evaluate 
progress and discuss activities and priorities 
for the next quarter. 

 For individual audit engagements we hold 
planning meetings in person (our 
preference) by phone or email to discuss 
and agree the terms of reference and scope 
of our work. 

 We keep you informed of key findings during 
the audit and upon conclusion we hold a 
debrief meeting in person to discuss our 
findings and any outstanding issues.  

 We communicate the results of our audit 
work in a clear and concise way – securing 
management action where control 
improvements are needed. 

Page 88



 

11 
 

Appendix E – Our Quality Assurance Framework 

Quality is built into the way we operate – we 
have designed our processes and procedures to 
conform to best practice applicable to Internal 
Audit – in particular the UK Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards and the CIPFA Local 
Government Application Note.  
 
Our audit team offers a wide depth of knowledge 
and experience gained across different 
organisations. We promote excellence and 
quality through our audit process, application of 
our Quality Assurance Framework and our 
training and development programme.  
 
Our Quality Assurance Improvement 
Programme incorporates both the internal (self) 
and external assessments – this is a mandatory 
requirement and the Head of Audit reports 
annually on the results and areas for 
improvement.  Our internal assessments must 

cover all aspects of internal audit activity – The 
diagram below shows how we structure our 
internal assessments to ensure appropriate 
coverage. 
 
We use a number of ways to monitor our 
performance, respond to feedback and seek 
opportunities to improve.  Evidence of the 
quality of our audits is gained through feedback 
from auditees and the results of supervision and 
quality assurance undertaken as part of our 
audit process.  
 
Our Internal Audit Charter sets out the nature, 
role, responsibilities and authority of the Internal 
Audit service within the Council – this was 
approved by the Audit & Accounts Committee 
and was reviewed in 2019 following the planned 
revision of the CIPFA Local Government 
Application Note.  

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2020-21 
 

 

MEETING 
 

ITEMS 

9 NOV  
2020 

 Fund Manager Presentation – MG UK Property Fund 

 Monitoring Officer Conference – Monitoring Officer 

 Audit Completion Report 2019/20– Mazars  

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2020/21 – Internal Auditor 

 Audited Financial Report 2019/20 – Section 151 Officer 
 

25 JAN  
2021 

 Risk Report Quarter 2 – IT & Transformation Manager 

 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 - Accounting Policies – Section 151 Officer  

 Treasury Management and Capital Strategy Update - Quarter 3 2020/21 – 
Section 151 Officer   

 Draft Budget Setting Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021/22 - 
2025/26 – Section 151 Officer  

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2020/21 – Internal Auditor 
 

29 MAR  
2021 
 

 Fund Manager Presentation  

 Audit Strategy Memorandum - Year Ending 31 March 2020 – Mazars 

 Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 – Section 151 Officer Combined 
Assurance – Status Report – Internal Auditor 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2019/20 – Internal Auditor 

 Draft Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 – Internal Auditor 
 

24 MAY  
2021 

 Annual Fraud Performance Report 2018/19 – Credit Control Manager 

 Annual External Audit Fee – Mazars 

 External Audit Progress Report including Technical Update – Mazars 

 Pre-Audit Financial Report 2020/21 – Section 151 Officer 

 Annual Treasury Management Report 2020/21 – Section 151 Officer  

 Internal Audit Annual Report 2020/21 – Internal Auditor  

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2020/21 – Internal Auditor 
 

 

 

Page 91

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	2 AUDIT STRATEGY MEMORANDUM - YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2020
	Slide Number 1
	Contents
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28
	Slide Number 29
	Slide Number 30
	Slide Number 31
	Slide Number 32
	Slide Number 33
	Slide Number 34
	Slide Number 35
	Slide Number 36

	3 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019/20 - SECTION 151 OFFICER COMBINED ASSURANCE - STATUS REPORT
	4 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2020/21
	5 DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2021/22
	6 WORK PROGRAMME

